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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2018 and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Fiow Statement and the
Statement of Change in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind As financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting palicies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and .
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the Ind AS financial staiements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsihility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder,

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial Statemients. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
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statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2018,
and its loss {including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3}) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of ouraudit.

{b}  In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.

{c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive income),
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

{d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

{e}  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on
31* March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

(f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such cantrols, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure B".
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(@)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company did not have any pending litigations;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protecticn Fund by the Company;

For Sarab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

el &«-w—ﬂ” '&‘

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No. 100892
Bangalore

03 MAY 2018
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ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ARVIND BEAUTY BRANDS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “"Report on-other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

{vii)

fa} The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained fo us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the
year in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for
physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. We are informed that no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The Company does not have any immovable properties, hence requirement of this sub-clause is not

applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not material having regard to the size of the Company, and the same have been properly
dealt with in the hooks of account.

The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Consequently, requirements of clause {iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
advanced any Ioan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any investment covered
under section 185 of the Act. However, the Company has advanced lpans or given guarantees or
provided security or made investments covered under section 186 of the Act. We are of the opinion
that provisions of section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

In our opinign and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

The Company is not engaged in production, processing, manufacturing or mining activities Therefore,
the provisions of maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under sub section
{1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 mentioned in clause {vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are
not applicable. ’

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Custom, Value added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.
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{viii)
(ix)
(x}
(xi)
{xii)
{xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts payable as on
March 31, 2018 on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer. However, the
term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by the Company for the purpose for
which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.

To the best of our khowledge ‘and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year under review. Consequently,
requirements of Clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and accoerding to the information and explanations given to us,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Consequently, requirements of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with

him.

According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
iA of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

pelly dhore

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No. 100892
Bangalore

03 MAY 2018
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ARVIND BEAUTY BRANDS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Afvind Beauty Brands Retail
Private Limited (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}".
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internai Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act,
20113, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
malerial respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal céntrol based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we hadve obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded ‘as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417WA

orals dmre

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No. 100892
Bangalore

03 MAY 2018



Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Amount in Rs.}

‘Year ended: :
Miarch 31, 2017

tncome
Revenue from operations

Sale of Products 16 1,33,06,31,635 93,18,08,747
Operating Income 16 {1,82,225} 4,97,982
Revenue from operations 1,33,04,49,410 93,23,06,729
Other income 17 2,77,53,038 1,46,78,759
Total income (1) 1,35,82,02,448 94,69,85,488

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade 19 84,33,84,974 79,19,18,737

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 20 {8,00,80,326} (24,06,96,720)

Employee benefits expense 21 13,5293,113 11,50,55,046

Finance costs 2 29,47,069 64,638,305

Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 8,33,24,233 5,88,54,400

Other expenses 29 41,18,63,646 37,64,95,862

Total expenses {Il) 1,39,67,42,709 1,10,80,95,660

Profit / {Loss) before exceptional items and tax (i1)=([i-1t} {3,85,40,261) {16,11,10,172)

Exceptional items {IV) - .

Profit / {Loss) before tax (v} =-(H1-IV} [3,85,40,261) {16,11,10,172}

Tax expense

Current tax 25 - -

Deferred tax 25 {12,31,278) [6,08,96,556)

Total tax expense (V1} {12,31,278) {6,08,26,556)

"Profit / (Loss) for the year (V1) = (V-VI) {3,73,08,983) {10,02,13,616}

.Other comprehensive incame

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit pfans 12 96,629 14,88,504
Income tax effect 25 [25,124) {4,59,948}
Net other comprehensive income not to b lassified to profit or loss in subse t
: pr o be reclassifr o profit o quern: 71505 10,28,556

periods [A}

B. Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods: - .

Total other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (vill) 71,505 10,28,556

Total comprehensive income for the perfad, net of tax (vi+11] (3,72,37,478) {9,91,85,060}

Earning per equity share [nominal value per share Rs.10/- (March 31, 2617:

Rs,10/- ) .
Basic 3G (5.26) (20.94)
Diluted 20 (5.26) (20.9_4}

Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of the financial statermnents.

As per our report of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co:
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

rg's Regifirationfiff. 110417wW
t -
C.A.Chokshi Shreyas .
Partner
Membership No. 100892
Place : Bangalore
Date : 03-05-2018

/UWJ

Director : Kannan S
DI : 62528582
Place : Bangalore
Date : D3-05-2018

|

Director ; Suresh fayaraman
DIN : 03033110

Place : Bangalore

Date :03-05-20:8

Ankep 01T e

Company Secretary :Ankit Kumar Jain

Place : Bangalore
Date - 03-05-2038



Arvind Beauty Brands Retall Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
{Amountin Rs.)

Notes
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
{a) Praperty, piant and eguipment 5 332,16,18,536 28,11,59,349
{b) Intangihle assets & 171,865,154 2,35,76,327
{c} Financia} assets
(i) Other financial assets 7 12,31,72,902 10,12,77,315
{d] Deferred tax assets (net) 25 6,11,31,887 5,99,25,733
{e) Other non-current assets 8 - 1,17,00,750
Total non-current assets 52,31,08,479 47,76,79,474

t.Currant assets
{a) Inventozies 9 56,54,09,564 48,53,29,238

(b} Financial assets

[i} Cash and ¢ash equivalents 7 9,55,509 34,14,957
{ii) Bank balante other than [i} above 7 50,000 50,060,000
{iii) Loans 7 13,82,620 78,48,513
(iv) Others financial assets 7 1,16,68,197 56,67,870
{c} Current tax assets {net} 1 50,52,219 21,71,204
{d) Other current assets 8 11,54,90,287 1,49,09,131
Total current assets 70,00,12,396 52,43,40,913
Total Assets 1,22,31,20,875 1,00,20,20,387
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equi_tv
Equity share capita! 11 7,68,94,880 6;46,49,990
Cther equity 12 65,86,75,844 58,76,88,414
Total equity 73,55,70,724 ° ___65,23,38,404
LIABILITIES
I Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabifities
(i) Borrowings 13 31,56,512 29,10,206
{b) Long-term provisions 14 46,85,316 14,95,404
Totai non-current liabilities 78,41,828 . 44,05,610
1. Current fabilities
{a) Financial lizbilities
{1) Borrowings 13 14,66,914 33,04,610
(i} Trade payables 13 43,51,01,303 33,03,24,943
(it} Other finandial liahilities 13 2,48,29,886 1,24,38,238
(b} Gther current lizbilities 15 1,79,85,242 79,21,340
{c) Short-term provisions . 14 3,20,978 12,87.344
Total current liabilities 47,97,08,323 34,52,76.373
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,22,31,20,875 1,00,20,20,387
Syminary of significant accounting policies 3
- The accompanying notes are an iiitegral part of the financial statements
As 1 1 our report of aven date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. For and on behalt of the board of directors of
Charteréd Acccuntants Arvind Beauty B-ands Retail Private Limited
Firny's Registration Me. 110417W
-
S - Fsrrna)
€A Choklishi Shreyas B. Director : Kanras S Birector - Suresh jayaraman
Paetner DIN : 02528982 DIN : 0303320
Nembership Mo 100832 Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Piace ; Bangalnre Date :03-05-2018 Date 1 03-05-2618

Dave 1 0X-05-2018

Andp DT

Company Secretary “Ankit Kumar Jain
Place - Bangalore
Date : 0305201k



Arvind Beauty Brands-Retafl Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Amount in Rs.)

P Yearended. " Year ended
P March 31, 2017
A Operating activities
Profit / {Loss) Before taxation {3,85,40,261} {16,11,10,170)
Adjustments to reconcile profit. before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation /Amortization 8,33,34,233 5,88,54,399
Interest Income {9,88,567) {35,32,400)
interest and Other Borrowing Cost 25,47,069 64,68,305
Share based payment reserve 4,69,876 -
8,57,62,211 6,17,90,304
Operating Prefit before Waorking Capital Changes 4,72,21,950 (9,93,19,866}
Working Capital Changes:
Changes in Inventories {8,00,80,326) (24,06,96,720)
Changes in trade payables 11,47,76,362 10,44,75,190
Changes in other current lizhilities 1,00,67,902 53,56,340
Changes in other financial liabilities 1,23,91,648 13,57,847
Changes in provisions (9,65,266) 7,34,743
Changes in other current assets {10,05,81,156) 1,14,46,352
Changes in Long Term Provisions 32,86,541 -
Changes in ather financiaf assets {2,78,94,489) {2,88,66,162)
Changes in Other Bank Balances 49,50,000 {50,00,000}
MNet Changes in Working Capltal (6.40,49,784) {15,11,92,410)
Cash Generated from Operations {1,68,27,834) {25,05,12,276}
Direct Taxes paid {(Net of Income Tax refund} (28,81,015) (21,30,965)
Net Cash from Operating Actlvities {1,97,08,849) {25,26,43,241)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment/fintangible assets {11,73,62,247) (18,64,97,073}
Changes.in Capital Advances 1,17,00,750 3,31,96,450
Changes in Loans given 54,65,893 {78,18,513)
Interest Income 9,87.542 35,32,400
Net cash flow from Investing Activities {9,82,08,062} {15,75,86,726)
C Cash Flow from Finanting Activities
Issue of Share Capital 1,22,44,89% 3,14,66,560
Securities Premium received 10,77,55,032 40,85,33,140
Share application money-received/refunded - {100}
Changes in fong term Borrowings 2,46,306 29,106,206
Changes in short term horrowings {18,37,696} {3,66,06,526)
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid (29,47,069) (64,68,305]
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 11,54,61,463 39,98,35,075
Net Increase/{Decrease} in cash & cash equivalents (24,55,448} {1,03,94,892)
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 34,14,957 1,38,09,849
Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the period 959509 34,145,957

Rupge

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: (Note 7)

Balances with Banks 9,553,509 34,314,957
Cash and cash equivalents 9,59,509 34,14,957
Cash and cash equivalents as restated 9,59,509 34,14,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finzncial statements.

Notes:
1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method-as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ing AS 7) statement of cash fiows.
2 Purchase of property, plant & equipment / intangible assets include movement of capital work-in-progress and intangibie assets under devefopment

during the year.

As per our report of even date

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. For and on behalf of the hoard of directors of Arvind Beauty Brands Retalf Private Limited
Chartered Accountants &
Firm Registration No 0417w
»
T —
LA, Chokshi Shreyas B. Director : Kannan § Director : Stresh Jayaraman
Partner DIN - 02528987 DIN : 03033110
Membershin Nu. 100892 Piace’; Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Bangalore Date :03-05-20138 Date ; 03-05-2018

Date :03-05-2018 *
Anpy & Jawn

Company Secretary :Ankit Kumar Jain
Place : Bangalore
Date :03-05-2018



Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

A, Equity share capital

in‘Rs.
As at March 31, 2016 3,31,83,330
Issue of Equity Share capital 3,14,66,660
As at April 1st, 2017 6,46,49,990
Issue of Equity Share capital 1,22,44,890
As at March 31, 2018 7,68,94,880

B. Other equity

Atiributable to the equity holders of the Company

{Amount in Rs.)

rves and Surplys

Balance as at April' 1, 2016 31,69,16,570 - (3,85,76,236) 27,83,40,434

Profit / {Loss) for the period - - {10,02,13,616) {10,02,13,616)
Addition during the year 40,85,33,140 - 40,85,33,040

Other comprehensive income for the period - - 10,28,556 10,28,556

Total Comprehensive income for the period 40,85,33,140 - (9,91,85,060) 30,93,47,980

Balance as at March 31, 2017 72,54,49,710 - {13,77,61,296) 58,76,88,414

Balance as at April 1, 2017 72,54,49,710 {13,77,61,296) 58,76,88,414

Profit / {Loss} for the year - - (3,73,08,983) (3,73,08,983)
Addition during the year 10,77,55,032 - 10,77,55,032

Other comprehensive income for the period - - 71,505 71,505

Total Comprehensive income for the period 10,77,55,032 - {2,72,37,478) 7,05,17,554

Contribution from the Holding Company for

Employee Stock Options 4,69,876 - 4,689,876

Balance as at March 31, 2018 83,32,04,742 4,69,876 {17,49,98,774) 65,86,75,844

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accoyntants
No. 110417

irm’'s Rekistra
(% 1 tli V
C.A.Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner

Membership No. 100852
Place ; Bangalore

Date :03-05-2018

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

Director : Kannan &
DIN : 02528982

Place : Bangalore
Date :03-05-2018

A/\ tw YT a g

Company Secretary :Ankit Kumar Jain
Place : Bangalore
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2018

1. Corporate Information

Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in the business of retailing of
Cosmetic products and Accessories of SEPHORA and other Partner Brands. SEPHORA is a French Chain of
Cosmetic stores which offers beauty products including make-up, fragrance and hair care. The Company
has some of the best known international brands apart from SEPHORA, like MUFE, BOSCIA, DIOR, CLINIQUE,
STILA, ESTEE LAUDER, LANCOME.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
May 3, 2018. '

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as
issued under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting poiicy regarding
financial instruments);

« Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
¢ Value in Use

2.3 Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee as per the
requirement of Schedule 1lI, except when otherwise indicated.
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3.1

3.2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements consistently to all the periods presented:

. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current

classification.

An asset is current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

feast twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
¢ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
* Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at leasi twelve months

after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycte of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable,
it is assumed to be twelve months.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financia} statements aie continuously
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and
factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
existing circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in

which the resuits are known / materialised.
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3.3.

3.4.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that
occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting
date.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional and
preséritation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate
are recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
ditferences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or profit or loss are also recognised
in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o Inthe principal market for the asset or liability
Or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.



The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
¢ Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
o Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. -
¢ level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurament is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as-asset held for

sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion with and approval by the
Company’s Audit Comrnittee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
" whether professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the
Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable on vearly basis.




3.5.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.
* Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
@ Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition
° Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning
of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a
provision are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets
are ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their
intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residual
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight-line method as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule I to the Companies Act 2013 except for Plant and Machinery other than Lab equipment arid
Leasehold Improvements.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different usefu} life, they are accounted for
as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining
useful life of the principal assets whichever is Jess.

The mahageme‘nt estimates the useful lives for certain PPE as follows:
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Assets Useful Life
{Years)
Furniture & Fixture ' 6
Leasehold Improvements 6
Plant & Machinery 5
Vehicles 4

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from the
useful lives as prescribed under Part € of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfiiment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the a reangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement,

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Finance leases that
transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized
in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense.in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term except
the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect and tease expense is accounted in such case
by actual rent for the period.

Borrowing cost

Borrawing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
neeessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
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part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Foilowing initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs,
are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at [east
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usefu! iife or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite usefui lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 3 years or License Period whichever

is lower and Value of license brands is amortized over 5 years.




3.9. Inventories
Inventories of Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

¢ Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.10. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available. if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These caiculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken te other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is aiso recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previcus

revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previousiy recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount, A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determire the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
fimited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount; nor exceed ihe



carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment less been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation

increase,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

3.11. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the
Company, the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is
‘the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue
arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with dispatch. Revenue from the sale of goods
is measured .at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable including excise duty, net of
returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sales Return
The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis

of the margin of the sales.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
fife of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financiai asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options} but does not consider the expected credit Iosses Interest income is
included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

3.12. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.



a) Financial assets

i}

(ii)

Initial recognition and measurement of firanclal assets

All financial assets are recognised injtially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
s Financial assets at amortised cost
* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
s Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)

» Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount
outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EiR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income if:
-~ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the pringipal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCl). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC| is reclassified from the equity to P&L.



Interest earned whilst'holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the

criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value
through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with
ali changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii} Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delayto a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

-of the asset.



When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or-has entered
Into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv} Reclassification of financiai assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’'s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes
which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties.
A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does
not restate anv previously recognised gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses) or
interest.



The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new
gross carrying amount.

Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCl. No change in EIR due to
rectassification.

FVOCi Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOC! FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumuiative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date.

(v) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

* Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured.as at FVTOC

® Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17

» Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

¢ Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

e Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL



The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
° Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 18, if they do not
contain a significant financing component
¢ Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 18 that contain a
significant financing component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore
separation of time value of money, and

“The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, ina
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:
¢ All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably,
then the Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument
* Cashflows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss {P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

s Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL
is présented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets
in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount,

¢ Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.



® Debtinstruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment aliowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financiai
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis. The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired {POC) financial
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b) Financial Liabilities _
(i} Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial ifabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

(ii} Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

o Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or ioss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCI. These gains / losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other cha nges
in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.



Loans and Borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-hearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EiR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(ili) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability {or a part of a financial liahility} is derecognised from its balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discha rged
or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on su bstantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is. treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liahility. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

¢) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.13. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of

the Company’s cash management.

3.14. Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.




Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or

paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax reiating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and ioss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the tra nsaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the ca rry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

°* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there
is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss.
The Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent
the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

3.15. Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
Alt employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences,
awards, exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are recognised in the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

b} Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Definad contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme, employees’
state insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined contribution plans.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under such schemes.
The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes are
Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit. Credit Method as
at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced
from the gross obligation under the defined benetit plans, to recognise the abligation on the net
hasis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and fosses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on




plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified
to Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
° The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

¢) Other long term employment benefits:
The emplayee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present
value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is
reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the net basis

3.16. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential

ordinary shares into ordinary shares.



3.17. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of

any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.




Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

41.1.

4.2,

Significant judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner is acting as
a principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary obligation for pricing latitude
and exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale of goods. The Company has concluded
that certain arrangements are on principal to agent basis where its business partneris acting as an agent,
Hence, sale of goods to its business partner is recognised once they are sold to the end customer.

Estimates and assumption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the

obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the
currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve
to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further
reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on
which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tabies tend to change
only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected
future inflation rates for the country.




Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 29.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technigues. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, @ degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34 for further

disclosures.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based
on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probahle that taxable

profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.8 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of Intangible assets has

been disclosed in Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.5 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5. '

Impairment of non-financial assets

impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverabie
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
iength, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and deo not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes,
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 {a) Loans (Unsecured consndered good)

{Amount in Rs. )
{;Particufars

“Asat March 31, 2018

Current
Loans to related parties - 77,568,513
Loans to employees (Short term) 13,82,620 50,000
13,82,620 '78,48,513
Total Loans 13,82,620 78,148,513

7 {b) Cash and cash equivalent {Amount in Rs.)
T Asat March:31, 2018 Sat ] 319201

Balance with Bank

Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 9,59,509 34,14,957
Total cash and cash equivalents 9,59,509 34,14,557
7 () Other bank balance (Amount in Rs.)

Deposits with original maturity less than 12 months 50,000 50,00,000
Total other bank balances 50,000 50,00,000
Total cash and bank balances 10,09,509 84,14,957
7 (d) Other financial assets {Amountin Rs.)

As atMarch:31;, 202

Non-current
Security-deposits

Considered Good - Security deposits 12,29,72,902 10,10,27,315
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 2,00,000 2,50,000
12,31,72,902 10,12,77,315

Current
Cther Receivable 1,16,59,741 56,60,839
Accrued Interest 8,456 7,031
1,16,68,197 56,67,870
Total financial assets 13,48,41,099 10,69,45,185

7 (e} Flnancaal assets by category

EMOCL mortized Cost?
March 31, 2018
Loans - - - 13,82,620
Cash & cash equivalents - - - 9,59,509
Other Financial Assets - - . 13,48,41,099
Total Financial assets - - - 13,71,83,228
Barticulars: 7 L AROCE mortized Cost 1
March 31, 2017
Loans - - - 78,48,513
Cash & bank balances - - . - 34,14,957
Other Financial Assets - - - 10,69,45,185
Total Financial assets - - - 11,82,08,655

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 36
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liahilities are in Note 34 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment are
ig Note 35.



Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As-atMarch

Non-current

Capital advances “ 1,17,00,750
- 1,17,00,750
Current

Prepaid expenses 7,84,459 15,93,507

Advances
Advanceto Others 33,04,362 27,68,950
Balance with collectorate of central excise and customs 4,84,333 5,48,230
Saies tax / VAT / GST receivable {net) 11,09,17,133 95,98,444
11,54,90,287 1,49,09,131
Total 11,54,90,287 2,66,09,881

Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

{Amount in Rs.)

Partlcular

Stock-in-trade 56,36,54,238 48,43,80,597
Packing materials 17,40,326 9,48,641
Total 56,54,09,564 48,53,29,238

Note 10 : Current Tax Assets (Net)

{Amount in Rs.)

Tax Paid in Advance {Net of Provision)

50,52,219 21,71,204

Total

50,52,219 21,71,204

2/



Arving Beauty Brands Retall Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Equity share capita!

. -AsatMarch 31, 2017
' in

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 18,00,00,000
Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 64,64,999 6,46,49,990
Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each : 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 64,64,995 6,46,49,990
Total 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 64,64,999 6,46,49,990

11.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

: : : 4 i i i ] Lo NS s’ i 0..0l'shares. RS
At the beginning of the period 64,64,999 6,46,49,990 33,18,333 3,31,83,330
Add : :

Shares issued during the year 12,24,489 1,22,44,890 31,46,566 3,14,66,660
Qutstanding at the end of the period 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 64,64,999 6,46,49,990

11.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferentiai amounts, in proportion to their

shareholding.

11.3. Shares held by holding company

o ” ‘No.of shares :
:g;:i;:ge?}:mpany - Arvind Fashions Limited (along with 76,89,488 7,68,94,880 64,654,959 6,45,49,990

11.4. Number of Shares held by each sharcholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

Ho!dkmg Company - Arvind Fashions Limited {along with 76,89,488 100% 64,64,999 100%
nominees} ’

11.5. Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 37



Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes ta che Financial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

{Amount in Rs.)

Securities premtum account

Balance as per last financial statements 72,54,49,710 31,69,16,570
Add: addition during the year 18,77,55,032 40,85,33,140
Balance at the end of the year 83,32,04,732 72,54,49.710

Contribution from Parent for ESOP (Refer Note 32)
Balance as per last financial statements -
Add: Contribution received during the year 4,659,876 -
Baiance at the end of the year 4,69,876 -

Surplus in statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements {13,77.61,296) {3,85,76,2356)
Add: profit for the year {3,73,08,983) {1G,02,13,616)
Add f {Less): ©Cl for the year 71,505 10,28,556
Balance at the end of the year (17,49,98,774} {13,72,61,296)
Total Other equity 65,86,75,844 58,76,88,414

Note 13 : Financial liabilities

13 {a) Long-term Borrowings {Amount in.Rs.)
k | i i 31,2017

Long-term Borrowings {refer note a below}
Non-current portion

Secured
Term loan from Banks 31,56,512 29,10,206
31,56,512 29,10,206
Current maturities
Secured
Term loan from Banks B8,72,197 5,14,563
8,72,197 6,14,563
Total long-term borrowings 40,28,709 35,24,769
Short-term Borrowings {refer note b below}
Unsecured
intercorporate Deposits - From Related Parties 14,066,914 33,04,610
Total shart-term borrowings 14,66,914 33,04,610
Total borrawings 54,95,623 68,29,379

MNature of security:
Hire Purchase loans from are secured against hypothication of related vehitles

Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

From Banks

Hire Purchase Loan 40,28,70%;

Inter Corporate Depasit carties interest rate of 8% per annuvm,

13 (b} Trade payable

{Ar_nount tn Rs.)
st March.31, 2017

Current
Other trade payable (Refer note below) 43,51,01,303 32,03,24,941

Total 43,51,01,303 32,03,24,941

The Caimpany has not received any intimation rom suppliers regarding their siatus under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
{MSMED) Act, 2006 and hence disciosures as required under Saction 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Developmert [MSMED) Act, 2006
regarding:

{2} Principal amount and the interest due thereon remairiag unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of aceounting year;

{t) interest puid during the year;

{c) Amount of payment made te the supplier beyoad the appointed day during accounting year,

{d} Interestdue and payable for the period of deiay n making payment;

le} Interest accrucc and unpaid at the end of the accounting year; and

{t} Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding yesrs, urtil such data

when the interest dues above are actunily paid to the small entarprise.

have not bean given, The Company is making efforts te get the confirreations frum the suppliers as regard to their status under
the sa.d Act



Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes te the Financial Statements

13 {c) Other financial liabilities {Amount in Rs.)
i B o ¥ : 31,2017
Cuirrent
Current maturity of leng term borrowings 8,72,187 6,14,563
Payabie to employees 41,23,494 33,35,923
Payable in respect of capital goods 1,98,34,195 84,87,752
Total 2,48,29,886 1,24,38,238
13 (d] Financial llabllitfes by category
Particulars F/TPL FVOCI Amporiized Cost
March 31, 2018
Barrowings - - 5£4,95,623
Trade payakle - - 43,51,01,303
{ther financial Yabilities - - 1,98,34,195
Current maturity of leng term borrowings - - 8,72,197
Payable to employees - - 41,23,494
Total Financial liablhities - - 46,54,26,812
March31, 2037
Borrowings - - 68,29,379
Trade payable - - 32,03,24,941
Other financial liabilities - - 84,87.752
Current maturity of long term borrowings - - 6,14,563
Payable to employees - - 33,35,923
Total Financial lfabilities - - 33,95,92,558

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 36
Fair value disclosures for financizl assets and liabiiities are in Note 24 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment are in Note 35.

Note 14 : Provisions

{Amount in Re.}
0

Long-term
Provision for employee benefits (refer Note 29}
Provision for leave encashment 24,82,345 14,95,404
Provision for Gratuity 22,02,971 -
46,85,316 14,95,404
Short-term
Provislon for employee benefits (refer Note 29)
Pravision for leave encashment . 3,14,864 1,86,877
Provision for Gratuity 6,114 11,00,267
3,20,978 12,587,244
Total 50,06;294 27,82 648
Note 15: Other current f Non-current liabilities
{Amount in Rs )
. SI0IT

Current
Statutary dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 80,36,108 79,21,340
Deferred income of léyzlty program reward polnts [ Refer note a below) §9,53,134 -
1,79,88,242 79,21,340
Tatal 1,79,89,242 79,21,340

{a) Deferred income of Layalty Program Reward Pofnts
The Company has deferred the revenue refated {o the customer jovalty piogram reward points, The movement in deferred revenue for those reward
[Amountin As)
TR

Balance as per last financial statemeénts
Add: Provision made during the year (Net) 99,53,134
{Less}): Rederption made during the year -

{Less): Expired during the year
Balance at the eod of the year 99,53,134 -

G




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 16 : Revenue from operations

{Amount in Rs.)
March:31,2017

March 31, 2018

Sale of products 1,33,06,31,635 493,18,08,747
Operating Income

Exchange Difference {Loss) {1,82,225) 4,97,982
Total 1,32,04,49,410 93,23,06,729

Note 17 : Other income
{Amount in Rs.)

Interest income 9,838,967 35,32,400
Miscellaneaus income 2,67,64,071 1,11,46,359
Total 2,77,53,038 1,46,78,759

Note 19 : Purchases of stock-in-trade

{Amount in Rs.)
312

Cosmetics & Accessaries 84,33,84,974 79,19,18,737

Total 84,33,84,974 75,19,18,737

Note 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

{Amount in Rs.}

Stock at the end of the year
Stock-in-trade 56,54,08,564 48,53,29,238

Stock at the beginning of the year

Stock-in-trade 43,53,29,238 24,46,32,518
{Inctrease} / Decrease in stocks {8,00,80,328) {24,06,96,720)
Total {8,00,80,326) (24,06,96,720)

Note 21 : Employee benefits expense
{Amaunt in Rs.)
March 3152018 March:31: 201

Salaries, wages, bonus, etc. (Refer Note 29) 11,99,53,410 19,31,48,850
Contribetion to provident, gratuity and other funds 77,987,016 64,83,574
Welfare and training expenses 70,72,811 54,22,622
Share based payment to employees 4,69,876 -

Total 13,52,93,113 11,50,55,046




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 22 : Finance costs

[Amount in Rs.)

Wiarch 31,2018

interest expense - Loans

Term Loans 3,29,538 87,375
Interest expense - others 26,17,531 63,80,930
Total 29,47 ,069 64,68,305

Note 23 : Depreciation and amortization expense

{Amount inRs.)

07

Depreciation on Tangible assets (Refer Note 5} 7,60,04,560 5,17,07,583
Amortization on Intangible assets {Refer Note 6} 73,29,673 71,46,817
Total §,33,34,233 5,88,54,400

Note 22 : Other expenses

{Amount in Rs.}

1,203

Power and fuei _ 2,55,26,381 1,78,69,427
Service Charges 1,35,32,611 2,29,83,326
Insurance 14,23,645 11,71,365
Printing, stationery & communication 30,60,520 19,665,968
Rent Expenses (Note 33} 14,86,76,1%4 10,50,15,168
Commission, Brokerage & discount 5,7G,72,616 5,81,81,829
Rates and taxes 22,42,879 1,17,45,497
Repairs ;

To others 3,96,12,004 2,84,77,039
Royaity on Sales 2,78,88,905 2,14,40,780
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 50,35,652 1,81,97,106
tegal & Professional charges 20,50,904 44,67,342
Housekeeping Charges 1,03,15,718 78,45,045
Security Charges 1,01,94,419 82,27,720
Conveyance & Travelling expense 85,71,510 73,44,093
Advertisement and publicity 2,98,72,892 3,82,06,649
Sales Promotion 9,20,390 13,30,029
Charges for Credit Card Transactions 1,11,14,019 82,30,192
Packing Materials Expenses 54,64,428 51,34,055
Contract Labour Charges 46,608,119 38,33,494
-Sampling and Testing Expenses 14,527 27,483
Auditor's remuneration {Refer Note below) 11,49,854 13,58,217
Bark charges 27,565,157 18,76,749
Miscellaneous expenses 6,60,342 15,66,319
Total 41,18,63,646 37,64,95,892
Payment to Auditors

{Amaunt in Rs.}

Payment to Auditors as

Auditors §,00,000 10,00,0C0
For tax audit 2,300,000 2,00,000
For Other certification work 1,12,174 1,20,537
For reimbursement of expenseas 37,680 37,6806
Total 11,49,854 13,58,217




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Nates to the Financial Statements

Note 25 : Income tax
The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2018 are :

{Amount in Rs.)

2016-17
Statement of Profit and Loss
Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense (12,31,278) {6,08,96,556}
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss [12,31,278)} {6,08,96,556)

OCl section

{Amount in Rs.)

Statement to Other comprehensive income [QC1)
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Net loss/{gain) on actuarial gains and losses (25,124)

(4,59,948)

Deferred tax charged to OCI (25,124}

(4,59,948)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017,
A} Current tax

{Amount in Rs.}

2016-17
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations (3,84,43,632) {15,96,21,668)
Tax @ 26% {March 31, 2016: 30.90%) {899,95,344) {4,93,23,095)
Adjustment
i respect of book depreciation more than IT depreciation {93,89,250) (54,50,018}
Deductible on payement bases {438 items) {4,82,312) (1,8:,080)
Expenses u/s 35 DD 1,96,155 {4,46,771})
Share based expense (1,22,167) -
Unabsorbed depreciation & business loss 1,85,86,764 {50,35,644)
At the effective income tax rate of -92.29% {March 31, 2016 -30.91%) {12,06,154} (6,04,36,608)
3.14% 317.86%

B) beferred tax

[Amount.in Rs.)

in respect of book depreciation more than (T depreciation 1,36,95,589 43,06,339 63,89,250 54,50,018
Deductible on payement bases (436 items) 12,564,195 8,13,883 4,82,312 1,81,080
Expenses u/s 35 DD 2,50,616 4,46,771 (1,96,155) 4,46,771
unabsorbed depreciation & business iass 4,57,67,320 5,43,58,740 (85,51,420) 5,43,58,739
Others 1,221,167 - 1,22,167 -
Deferred tax expense/{income}

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities} 6,11,31,887 5,99,25,733 12,06,154 5,04,36,608
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows

Deferred tax assets 6,11,31,887 5,99,25,733

Deferred tax Habilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6,11,31,887 5,99,25,733

{Amaunt in Rs.}

ferred t

‘Reconciliation

201617

{5,10,875)

Openipg balance as of April 1 5,99,25,733

Tax income/{expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 12,31,278 6,08,96,556
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI {25,124) {4,59,948)
Closing balance as at March 31 6,11,31,887 5,99,25,733

The Company offsets tax assets and labilities if and only if it has a legally enforceahle right to set off current tax assets and current

tax fiabilities and the deferred tax assets.and deferred tax liabilities relate ta income taxes levied by the same tax authority.



Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 26: Capital commitment and other commitments
{Amount in Rs.)

Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended. March 31, 2017

Particulars

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on 8,08,164 52,99,845

capital account and not provided for
Other commitments - -

Note 27 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

Exposure Not Hedged

Nature of exoosure R Earrenc Yearended March 31, 2018 ' Year ended March 31, 2017
posu . arrency InFC inRs. In£C . In Rs.

Payable to creditors EURO 88,433 71,46,016. - -

Payable to creditors SGD - - 5,000 2,42,050

Note 28 : Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of retail trade of Cosmetics & Accessories through retail and
departmentat store facilities, which in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108 'Operating Segment’, constitutes
a single reportable primary business segment.

Secondary Segment

The risk and rcturns of the Company are not influenced by geegraphical lecation of its operations or location of its
customers. Both are situated in India.
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 31 : Disclosure pursuant to Related Party

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” {IND AS 24}, the related parties of the Company are as follows :

a Name of Related Partfes and Nature of Relationship :

Arvind Limited

Arvind Fashions Limited
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Arvind Envisol Limited

Ultimate Holding Company

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

b Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions :

Receiving of Services

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 2,85,39,568 5,32,58,860

Commission 41,61,040 -
Interest Expense

Arvind Limited 22,11,767 36,71,788
Other Expenses .

Arvind Limited - 9,62,525
Interest Income

Arvind Limited - 35,05,460

Arvind Envisol Limited 5,11,207 -
Issue of Equity shares

Arrvind Fashion Limited 11,99,99,922 43,99,99,800

Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions :

Loan taken
Arvind Limited
Arvind Envisol Limited

Loan repaid
Arvind Limited
Arvind Envisol Limited

Loan Given
Arvind Limited
Arvind Envisol Limited

Loan Received back
Arvind Limited
Arvind Envisol Limited

11,73,60,274
48,25,000

11,73,60,274
28,598,000

76,39,726
3,30,75,000

76,39,726
3,30,75,000

11,00,00,000

11,00,00,000

19,46,00,000

19,00,00,060
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Note 32: Share based payments:

Arvind Fashions Limited, the holding company [“AFL"} bas instituted Employee Stock Options Scheme 2016 ("ESOP 2016”). Under ESQOP 2016, AFL, at its
discretion, may grant share option to the eligible employees of the Company. As on March 31, 2018, AFL has granted 16,63,864 options and issued 38,269
opticns convertible into equal number of Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 2 each. The following tabie séts forth the particulars of the options under ESOP 2036:

Expense arising from share - based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share — based payment transaction recognized in profit or Joss as part of employes benefit expense were

as follows:

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Employee eption pfan 4,69,876 «
Total employee share based payment expense 4,69,876 -

Note 33 : Lease Rent

Dperating Lease

Factory Building is taken on lease period of 8 to 20 years with no option of renewal, no sub-lease of the building.
The particulars of these leases are as follows:

0185 01
Future Minimum lease payments obligation on non-cancellable operating leases: 15,55,26,282 17,81,47,320
Not later than one year 792,60,627 11,58,00,244
Later than one yeer and nat later than five years 7,62,65,655 6,23,47,076
Later than five years - -
Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 14,86,76,154 10,50,15,168




Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note 34 : Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities

Set out below is a compariscn, by ¢lass, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations
of fair vatues:

31,2017
S - [nRs;
Financial lfabilities
Borrowings 54 95 623 68,259,379 - 54,95,623 63,29 379
Tatal 54,95,623 68,283,379 54,95,623 68,259,379

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financia
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts Jargely due fo the short-term maturities of these instruments,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced o
liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

The fair value of borrowiags and other financial fiabifities is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates curtently available for debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Company has determined that market participants would take inte account when pricing the investments.

Note 35 : Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and habilities

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as at March 31, 2018 & March 31, 2017,
s i Jair valile measurementiusing

As at March 21, 2018
Liabilities disclosed at fair value

Barrowings March 31, 2018 54,985,623 - 54,895,623 -
As at March 31, 2017
Liabilities measured at fair value

Borrowings March 32, 2017 68,29,379 - 68,29,379 -
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Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note 36 : Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s ptincipal financial liabiities, comprise borrowings and trade & other payabies. The main plrpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s cperations and to support its operations.
The Corapany's principai financial assets include.{nvestmenis, loans given, trade and other receivables and cash & short-term depesits that derive directly from its operations.

The Campany's activities expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk

The Company's risk management is carried out by a Treasury department under policies approved by the Board of directors. The Company's treasury identifies, evaluates in close co-operation with the
Company's operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk-management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivitive financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Market risk
Miarket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markst risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate nsk, currency risk

and other price risk, such as equity price fisk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other pavables.

Within the various methodelogies to analyze and marage risk, the Company has implemented a system based on “sensitivity analysis” on symmetric basis, This tool enables the risk managers to identify the risk
pasition of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate quantification of the exgosure in the event that certain specified parameters were to be met under a specific set of assumptions, The risk

estimates provided here assume:

- a paraliel shift of S0-basis peints of the'interest rate yield curves in all currencies
- a simultaneous, parallel foreign exchange rates shift in which thae INR appreciates / depreciates against all currencies by 2%

The potential economic impact, due to these assumpticns, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and raflects estimated changes resulting from the sensitivity analysis, Actual results
that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ materially from these estimates due to actua! developments in the global financial markets.

The analyses exciude the impact of movements in market variabies on: the carrying values of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement abligations and provisions.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity znalyses;
- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit of loss {tem is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2018

and March 31, 2017 including the effect of hedge accounting, if any.

Interest rate risk
trtarest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to changes in market rates of interest.

As at March 31, 2018, 100% of the' Company's Barrowings are at fixed rate of interest {March 31, 2017 : 100%)
Iaterest rate sensitivity

- Fived rate financial instrymants maasured =% cost © $inre-a chanee in interest rate would pat rhange the carrving amount of this catégory of instruments, thare is no netincome impart and they are extiGded

fram this analysis

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded fram this analysis

Fareign turrency risk
Fareign cirrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure wilt fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company
transacts business in focal currency and in foreign currency, primarily in EUR.

Detgiis of the hedge & unhedged position of the Company given in Note ne. 26

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in EUR and SGL rates to the functionat currency of respective entity, with ali other variables held constant. The Company’s
exposure 16 foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. The impact on the Company’s profil before tax and pre-tax equity is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

fiabilities,
. Effect on profit hefore
Change in FCrate Currency tax prett ) Effect on pre-tax equity
March 31, 2018 +2% EURO (1,42,921) {1,42,921}
-2% EURO 1,42,921 1,42,923
NMarch 31, 2017 +2% sGD (4,934} (4,534)
-2% 5GD 4,934 4,934

Equity price risk
The Company has not invested in any publicly traded companies, Hence the Company i not exposed to Equity price risk.
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Credit risk

Credit risk fs the risk that a counterparty wil nat meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custormner eontract, feading to a financial loss, The Company is exposed 1o cradit risk fram its operating
activities {primarlly trade recelvables) and from its financing activitles, Including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments,

An impairment analysis is-performed a1 each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. in addition, 2 large number of minar recelvables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date s the carrying valve of each class of financial assets disciosed in
Note 7. The Company does not hiold colizteraf as security. The Company evalisates the corcentration of fsk with respect 10 trade recelvables as low, as s customers &re located i several jurtsdictions and
industries znd operate in largely independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash depasits

Cradit risk from balances with banks and financfal institutions s rmanaged by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. investments of surplus funds are made onby with
approved counterparties whe meets the minimum threshold requirerments under the counterparty risk assassment process. The Company monltars the ratings, credit spreads and fnancial strength 6{ s
counterpartles. Based on its on-going assessment of rounterparty risk, the group adjusts ls SXposire ta varlous counterparties. The Company's maximum exposure 1o cradit risk for the components of the
Balance sheet as of March 31, 2018 & March 31, 2017 % the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 34,

Linuidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and coliateral ohligations withaut incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective s to, at alf times
maintain eptimum levels of lquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company clasely monitors {is fiquidlty position and deploys a robust cash management systern. It maintains adegquate
sources of financihg including bilateral ioans, debt and everdraft fram Both domestic and international banks at an optirmized cost. It also enjoys strong access ta domestle capital markets across equity.

{Arnountin Rs.)

As at March 31, 2018

tnterest bearing borrowings® 14,65,914 2,18,049 5,54,148 31.56,512 -

Trade payables 21 47,67 966 15,66.83,444 42.49,693

Other finandal lishilities 2,33,57 689 - - - [
3[]‘9_;492,569 15,63,01,494 49,804,041 21,56,512 -

As at March 31, 2017

Interest bearing borrowings* 33,53,558 1,249,339 §,34,573 26,91,860 -

Trade payables 19.61,14,868 14,8833,308 53,76,765 - -

Other financial fabffivies 70,858,443 47.35,231 - - -
20,65,55,90% 12,37,17,878 60,11,333 26,91,869 -

* tncludes contractual interest payment based on [nterest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting periad over the tenor of the barrowings.

Naote 37 : Capitsf management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital Includes fssued equity sapital and alf other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company’s capital management is te ensure that it maintains an efficient capltal structure end healthy capital raties In order to support its business and rmaximize shareholder vaiue.

The Cornpany marnages Its capltal structure and makes adjuitments to it in light of changes In economic conditions or {ts business requirements. To matntaln or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capltal to sharehotders or issus new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratlo, which Is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings Jess cash and short-term deposits {including other bank balance).

[Ameount in Rs.}

Asat-March'3
Interest-bearing ioans and borrowings 54,85,623 68,29,379
{Note 13]
Less: cash and cash equivatent {including (12,009,509} {86,64,957)
other bank balance)
{Note 71
Net debt 42,865,114 fﬂ,?nS,ST%L
Equity share capital {Nate 11) 7,68,84,850 6,46,49,990
Other equity (Note 12} £5,86,75 844 58,76 88,414
Total capital 13,55,70,724 65,23,38 404
Capital and net dein 73,98,56,638 B65,05,02,825
Gearing ratic 0.58% 0.40%

I order to achleve this overall objective, the Company’s capitat manzgernent, amongst other things, alms.to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached te the interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure reguirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would perrit the bank to Immediately calf loans and borrowings. There have been ne breaches in the financiai
covenants of any (nterest-bearing loans and borrowing i the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for fnanaging capital during the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31,.2017.

Loan covepants

Under the terms of the majar borrowing facliltles, the Company has complied with the required financlal covenants thraugh out the reporting perlods,

Hote 38 7 Standards issued but not yet effective
The standard issuad, butnot vet effective up to the date of issuance of the {ompany’s financial statements Is disclosed below, The
Company intends to adops thisstandard when it becomes effective.

Appendix B to ind AS 21, Foreigs currenty transactlons and advance conskieration .
The smendment will come into force fram 1 April 2018. The Cempaiy is evaluating the requirernent of the amendment and the Impact on the Brancial staternents. The affect on

adoation of ind AS 21 Is exoected to be Insfanificant.”

Ind A$ 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affalrs has notified the Cempanies (indlan Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules"). As per the amended rules,

Ind A5 115 “Revenue from contracts with custoners™ supersedes ind AS 11, “Construction contracts”™ and Ind AS 18, “Revenus” and is applicabie for all accounting periods

commencing on or after 1 Aptll 2018,

ind A5, 115 Introduces a new framewark of five stap mode] for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as) an entity
transfer control of goods or-services to # custemer atthe ameunt to which the entity expects to be entilled. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the
natyre, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue ard cash flows azising from the entity’s contracts with customers. The new revenue standaid & applicable to the Company

from 1 April 2018,

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

= Retrospective approach - Under this appsonch the standard witt be'appiied retrospoctivaly to each priar reparting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting

Palicles, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors.

* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recegnized az the date of inltial application {Cumulative catch - upapproach).

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the Impact on the financlal statements. The effect an adoption of ind AS 115 Is expected to be insignificant”,

Note 39 : Regrouped, Recast, Raclassified
Fgures of the earlier year have beei regrouped or reclassifled 15 eonform with those of current year.



